

MINUTES

Meeting: SALISBURY AREA BOARD

Place: Alamein Suite - City Hall, Malthouse Lane, Salisbury, SP2 7TU

Date: 14 September 2017

Start Time: 7.00 pm **Finish Time:** 9.10 pm

Please direct any enquiries on these minutes to:

Lisa Moore (Democratic Services Officer), Tel: 01722 434560 or (e-mail)

lisa.moore@wiltshire.gov.uk

Papers available on the Council's website at www.wiltshire.gov.uk

In Attendance:

Wiltshire Councillors

Cllr Mary Douglas (Chairman), Cllr Derek Brown OBE (Vice Chairman), Cllr Brian Dalton, Cllr Matthew Dean, Cllr Sven Hocking, Cllr Atiqul Hoque, Cllr Ricky Rogers and Cllr John Walsh

Wiltshire Council Officers

Karen Linaker, Salisbury Community Engagement Manager Lisa Moore, Democratic Services Officer

Town and Parish Councils

Salisbury City Council – A Child Laverstock and Ford Parish Council – Cllr R Champion, Cllr D Hayes

Partners

Wiltshire Police – Inspector Pete Sparrow Wiltshire Fire and Rescue – Lucy May Older People's Champion – I Kohler Local Youth Network (LYN) – R Richards

Total in attendance: 23

Agenda Item No.	Summary of Issues Discussed and Decision
34	Welcome and Introductions
	The Chairman, Councillor Mary Douglas welcomed everyone to the meeting of the Salisbury Area Board and invited the members of the Board to introduce themselves.
	Portfolio holder for Communities and Youth; Cllr Chris Williams, was welcomed to the meeting.
35	Apologies for Absence
	Apologies for absence had been received from:
	Steve Godwin – Salisbury BID
36	<u>Minutes</u>
	Decision The minutes of the meeting held on Thursday 6 July 2017 were agreed as a correct record and signed by the Chairman.
37	Declarations of Interest
	There were none.
38	Chairman's Updates
	There were none.
39	Information items
	The Chairman drew attention to the following written information items attached to the agenda:
	 a. Housing Site Allocations b. Emergency Planning c. Public Meetings d. Assertiveness Outreach e. Household Recycling Centres
	Attention was drawn to the current proposals to change the parking charges for Wiltshire. Consultation would begin on 25 th September for 8 weeks.

40 Local Youth Network (LYN) Update

The Board considered the reports attached to the agenda, detailing options to move forward in strengthening the Local Youth Network arrangements in Salisbury.

Cllr Derek Brown had attended the recent meeting pf the LYN Management Group which looked at how to better engage with the young people of Salisbury in the LYN process to facilitate provision of activities for young people. A report was attached to the agenda.

In the past it had been evident that it was difficult to get the young people to the meetings, to draw in their expertise in a way that would be meaningful to this Board. The Board hoped to enhance the way in which the young people could be involved.

Several issues had been identified, including transportation. One idea to tackle that issue was to ask local schools to host the LYN management group meeting at the end of the school day, whilst the young people were still at the venue.

Other options were to identify an existing Youth Group to ask them to hold the meeting over the period of a year at a time. The idea of running an annual award ceremony was also suggested.

Questions and comments:

- The LYN model developed by WC aimed to engage with young people and to involve them in the process of awarding youth grants to other groups of young people. In Salisbury, the LYN sometimes only consisted of one or two young people, these low numbers were not representative of the young people of Salisbury. The time has come to try and do things differently in engaging young people.
- A directory of youth activities will also be set up, detailing what is available for young people in Salisbury. This will be provided to schools with the aim of getting the young people to tell us what they want and what they need.
- Was there an update on the vacant Youth Officer post? <u>Answer</u>: The
 replacement of Youth Officer's was tied in to the current ongoing review
 of the Youth Services. There were no dedicated Youth Officers available
 now.
- The current Chairperson for the LYN, was in support of the proposals put forward, especially the involvement of the schools.
- What had taken place since the last meeting with regards to engaging

young people? <u>Answer</u>: The CEM had visited the Friary Youth Group, where there had been approximately 25 young people to engage with. A report had then been produced and was attached to the agenda.

Cllr Derek Brown noted that if the LYN did move from school to school, then he asked that consideration would be given to the continuity of the group and suggested that the same Chairperson remained for the year. He then put forward to support the recommendations, with preference in favouring options b & e.

Decision

The Salisbury Area Board agreed to:

- Ask local schools/ school councils to be the host of LYNMG meetings from October 2017.
- Ask the LYNMG to run an annual youth awards ceremony.

41 Community Funding

The Board considered three applications for funding as detailed in the report attached to the agenda.

Applicants present were invited to speak in support of their projects. Following discussion and questions, the Board voted on each application in turn.

Cllr Hocking proposed to award Salisbury Post Adoption Support Group half of what had been requested, as the project was to be hosted at River Bourne Community Farm in Laverstock. He suggested that the applicant could then apply to the Southern Wiltshire Area Board for the other half.

Decision

Salisbury Post Adoption Support Group - £1,830 from the Youth Budget for 2017/18.

A short DVD was shown detailing the work of La Folia. A mother of young person from Exeter house spoke in support of the project.

Cllr Hocking proposed an amount of £2,000 to match fund the amount being given by Salisbury College, as he had concerns that a large amount of the project costs were going out in salaries and admin. He added that as this was a project that would be open to children outside of the Salisbury community area, the applicant could then apply to Southern Wiltshire and South West Wiltshire Area Boards for additional contributions.

Decision

La Folia was awarded £2,000 towards their project, from the Youth Budget for 2017/18.

Cllr Led Initiative – Five Rivers Football Pitches

As the Boards representative on the Five Rivers Management Committee, Cllr Dean noted that he had recently surveyed the land outside of the site with the parks manager from Salisbury City Council (SCC). The SCC Officer agreed to undertake some small-scale improvements at the site.

The maintenance of the turfed pitches would be improved, which would attract additional use to the site. Funding from the Leisure Budget would cover the replacement of football posts and other aspects.

Decision

The Salisbury Area Board allocated £1,300 towards the Councillor Led Initiative for the Five Rivers Outdoors Pitch Improvements project.

42 Partner and Community Updates

Salisbury City Council (SCC) – Cllr Dean

- The pedestrian counters in the market have recorded visitor numbers had increased on last year.
- The recent motorbike show had been very successful.
- Food and drink festival and play days had been hindered by the rain.
- 6 months on from the asset transfer, new kit had been purchased. A glutton and scrubbing machine was now being used to great effect in the market square.
- Hoping to be able to see through a structured process where the barrowmen should go, how they have cleaned.
- Working with partners to address recent reports of aggressive street begging and antisocial behaviour.
- Ongoing work to plan future major events, such as the Carnival.
- A public meeting will be held to talk about the parking arrangements in Salisbury, to feed into the Wiltshire Council consultation.

<u>Laverstock and Ford Parish Council – Cllr Ron Champion</u>

- A new play park area at Old Sarum had been completed. This had proved to be very popular.
- We have convened a team of residents to move forward with either a Parish Plan review or a Neighbourhood Plan over next few weeks.
- The Country Park was close to being signed off.
- Public artist project for the Riverdown park was going ahead.
- An informal meeting with our chairman, Vice Chair and SCC Chair and Vice Chair is being scheduled for early November to discuss how to work more collaboratively where appropriate.

Cllr Brown noted that as his division also covered part of the L&F area, he had

the privilege of attending their parish meetings.

Police - Inspector Pete Sparrow

Highlights from the written report circulated at the meeting were noted. A copy is attached to the minutes for information.

Question:

What do you propose to do about illegal cycling in Salisbury, bikes without brakes? <u>Answer</u>: There would not be any extra resources going to tackle cycling. If offences were reported they would be dealt with on an individual basis.

Fire - Lucy May

Highlights from the written report were noted.

Question:

False alarms were a daily occurrence, but was 25 the norm? <u>Answer</u>: Yes this was the norm, nothing unusual.

Child Wellbeing - Cllr Mary Douglas

A written report was attached to the agenda.

After meeting with a wide range of people across the city, we decided to focus on 0-5 year olds, in the Friary. The Community Foundation and the people of the Friary had become involved with this work. We have now handed over to them to continue and we will stay involved and in support of the work of the group.

<u>Health & Wellbeing – Cllr John Walsh</u>

The H&WB subcommittee was trying to improve the health of the community. Work was focused on older men, as they were a hard to reach group. Over the holidays they had been working on the possibility of a Men's Shed project.

The group was looking at whether more could be done to make it easier for people to access the help they need. Had an over 50s drop in group for a gynaecological cancer group.

Healthwatch had produced a report which stated there was a communication problem with the assessment of befits. We invite the public to the next meeting on 19th October at 6pm at Five Rivers, where we will have an Officer to attend to answer any questions. Working with our partners and organisations to see what the problems were.

The Board considered the recommendation to formalise the Outside Bodies representative for the Safer Supportive Salisbury Group as Cllr Walsh.

Decision

The Salisbury Area Board appointed Cllr John Walsh as Outside Body Representative to the Safer Supportive Salisbury Group for 2017/18.

Salisbury Community Energy - Alison Craig

This new organisation in Salisbury, was working closely with Salisbury Transition City, but were separate to that.

In Tisbury, they had recently formed a Community Energy model where they had got together to raise funds to put solar panels up in farms. The energy produced from this had then paid them back better than the bank. For the life of the project, the community then own that installation.

Alison asked for those interested and wishing to support this initiative to complete the questionnaire circulated at the meeting.

Community Engagement Manager – Karen Linaker

Dementia action alliance – The steering group had met twice, and were hoping to partner with a concert at Godolphin. The Salisbury Cathedral had also already supported the action alliance.

The Group was reviewing how many businesses had been drawn in and how it could involve SCC further. The Mayors cause this year was the Alzheimer's Society.

WWI Commemorative Tree Planting – This Council initiative will involve communities in commemorating the passing of the war with a tree planting project. Laverstock & Ford Parish Council and Salisbury City Council were both keen to be involved. Three main player already signed up to formulate how we would move forward with this. Nov 2018 was the ultimate planting date. Karen was keen for this to be a community involved project.

Air Quality Group

The Group last met on 12th September and reviewed the current action plan, which included the development of a mobile phone app, further development of the co-car initiative and further tree planting.

The Groups policy on S106 development funds was also discussed and would be looked at further. When a policy had been formulated it would be brought to the Board for endorsement.

Cllr Brown showed a DVD depicting an event called 'Ciclovia' (a Spanish term that means cycleway) where for one day, all of the streets were closed to vehicular movement to allow free passing of runners, skaters and cyclists. This was an initiative that could be linked closely with another event that could be going on in the city.

Other Updates

The Chairman invited Mr Ford to speak on a matter of concern relating to traffic issues on the Devizes Road.

As a local businessman living near Devizes Road, he had concerns regarding the large lorries coming along the road to Southampton docks and back again. He asked what could be done to prevent a major accident on this road. He felt that resident parking on this road was very dangerous. He noted that the pollution was worse in Devizes Road and Fisherton Street than other areas of Salisbury.

<u>Answer:</u> The matter should be dealt with initially by contacting your local Councillor, and Councillor Brown on the Air Quality Action Group. As Devizes road was split between 3 Cllrs, it would be necessary to establish where on Devizes road you lived to ascertain which Cllr's ward the issue was in.

Cllr Dean added that a lorry ban was not practical, as they were laid down by statute. The Board or Wiltshire Council could not achieve that. Parking could be enforced; we could ask parking enforcement to target the area.

The air quality in that area was very poor, and at times it was in breach of the national guidance. The A303 improvements with the tunnel, should make it less attractive for people to use Devizes road as a cut though.

The Wiltshire Council web site has the function that allows you to find out who your Councillor is and their contact details.

43 <u>Waste Management</u>

Tracy Carter, Associate Director for Waste and Environment delivered information on the consultation for the new Waste Management Strategy, to shape how the Council collects and manages household waste and recycling. The Council had adopted a 10-year business plan, and would now produce a strategy to support delivery of that plan.

The Council was also carrying out a programme of refurbishment of its recycling centres. Churchfields would close for these refurbishments from 9th – 18th November, during that time the Amesbury and Warminster sites would remain open on their usual scheduled days.

Tracy then asked those present to take part in a multiple-choice question session, using a small number of questions selected from the consultation. Those responses were collected for consideration as part of the consultation.

For the full consultation about the Waste Management Strategy, please visit www.wiltshire.gov.uk/waste Closing date: 14th November 2017.

Questions:

 It was surprising how many people had no access to social media or a computer. How do they take part? <u>Answer</u>: We would try to get as many people as possible to complete the consultation online as this was most cost effective. If someone phones customer services, they will send out a hard copy so as not to exclude anyone.

- With the contract changing next year, were you able to tell us what the change to the blue lidded bin and black box collections would be? <u>Answer</u>: The changes would commence on 30th July 2018, we would not yet circulate information on the changes but would run a full communication programme nearer the time. Glass only in the black box all the rest would go in the blue lid bin. From 30 July 2018 we would also take plastic pots, tubs and trays as well as plastic bottles.
- How did Wiltshire Council justify the reduction in recycling when it had reduced the opening hours at household recycling centres and had made money from garden waste collection? <u>Answer</u>: Councils across the country were having to deal with cuts to their budgets. We have had to find savings year on year. The reduction in recycling had come from two areas; garden waste collection is now charged for so we have seen a reduction in composting of garden waste, and the introduction of van and trailer permits so that commercial waste, some of which would have been recycled, had also reduced.
- In terms of commercial services, by not collecting waste we are giving the profit to the private sector? <u>Answer</u>: There are significant costs in collecting and managing waste. If it was profitable local authorities would not have a duty to deliver these services. Companies like Grist are predominantly dealing with waste from businesses. They make a profit because they charge for collection of waste and recycling. We signpost people who need to dispose of their commercial waste to the private sector.
- Would the Churchfields refurb include a better traffic management arrangement than the existing system? <u>Answer</u>: We were restricted by a lack of space in that facility. The refurb was relatively basic. We would be looking at which containers were most in use to try and balance the provision to the need. It was an old style site from the 1970s, the numbers of materials we accept now had increased a great deal since Churchfields was first opened.
- Had fly tipping levels have gone up? Answer: We had seen an increase in fly-tying across the county but that reflects the increase nationally. We continue to work on this.
- Could the costs to the council of the landfill tax be published more regularly? <u>Answer</u>: The council bears the cost of the landfill tax on waste which it collects that is landfilled. The figures for collecting and managing waste and recycling are quite complex as we manage over 30 different types of material and there are different charges depending on how they

are managed. We are trying to make that information easier for the public to access.

- Could a copy of the presentation be circulated with the minutes? <u>Answer:</u> Yes the slides would be attached.
- Are we still transferring some landfill out of Wiltshire? <u>Answer</u>: We only landfill the type of waste that is not suitable for producing energy and this is mainly disposed of in Wiltshire at Lower Compton, near Calne. We do still send 50k tonnes of waste each year to and energy from waste (EfW) plant just outside of Slough. We do have a mechanical biological treatment (MBT) plant in Westbury where non-recycled waste is treated to produce a fuel which is currently exported to energy from waste plants in other northern European countries.
- Why not sell the reusable items that are taken to the recycling depot? <u>Answer</u>: We are keen to reuse materials; for example bikes are collected by a charity who refurbish them and deliver them to schools in some African countries. We are constrained for space at the sites, but we are working on a proposal to enable more reuse of items delivered and hope to introduce this next summer.

44 Close

The Chairman thanked everyone for attending and noted that the next meeting of the Salisbury Area Board would be held on Thursday 9 November 2017, 7.00pm at City Hall.